
 

 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Thursday, February 27, 2025 -  5:00 PM 
 Redwoods Room, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital Campus 

700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA. 

Supporting documentation for this agenda is available on the website at: 
https://www.MendocinoChCd.gov. Individuals who need this agenda in an alternative format or 
who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the 
meeting should contact the District at 707-937-3089 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. This 
Board Meeting is being held in person and virtually, in accordance with the Brown Act, using the 
Zoom link below: 

https://zoom.us/j/98146064736?pwd=oPeARFKTkb5LupVLkXTest4fAb4HGF.1 
 
Meeting ID: 981 4606 4736 
Passcode: 541701 
 

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
1a) Roll Call: Paul Garza Jr. (Chair),  Jan McGourty (Vice Chair), Susan Savage (Secretary), Lynn 
Finley (Treasurer), Paul Katzeff (Member). 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
Members of the public are welcome to address the Board on items not listed on the agenda, but 
within the jurisdiction of the Board.  Time is limited to 5 minutes per speaker with a 20-minute 
total time limit for public comments. No action or discussion shall be taken on any item 
presented except that the Board may respond to statements made or questions asked, or may ask 
questions for clarification. All matters of an administrative nature will be referred to staff. All 
matters pertaining to the Board may be scheduled for discussion at a future meeting or referred 
to staff for clarification or a report, at the pleasure of the Board.  If general public comment 
exceeds the 20 minute time limit, members of the public who have not had the opportunity to 
speak on items not on this agenda will have the opportunity to do so after the business on the 
agenda is concluded, at the discretion of the Chair. Members of the public may send email to the 
board at: info@mendocinochcd.gov or leave a phone message at (707) 202-5228. The Board 
Chair may mute or remove anyone disrupting the meeting with inappropriate behavior. The 
meeting will conclude at 9:00pm.  Any unfinished business will be carried over to a subsequent 
meeting. 

 

Board Regular Meeting Agenda - February 27, 2025            Page 1 of 4      kw/Regional Government Services  
http://MendocinoChCd.gov/ 

https://www.mchcd.org
https://zoom.us/j/98146064736?pwd=oPeARFKTkb5LupVLkXTest4fAb4HGF.1
mailto:info@mendocinochcd.gov
http://mendocinochcd.gov/


 

 

3. CLOSED SESSION 
3a) Gov. Code §54956.8: Conference with Real Property Negotiators, 700 River Drive, Fort 
Bragg. Ca. 
District Negotiators: Wayne Allen, Chief Restructuring Officer, MCHCD. 
Negotiating party: Eric Stevens, President, Northern California Network, Adventist Health. 

Under negotiation: Terms of the Lease Agreement, dated July 1, 2020. 
 
3b) Gov. Code §54956.8: Conference with Real Property Negotiators, 721 River Drive, Fort 
Bragg. Ca. 
District Negotiators: Appointed District ad hoc Subcommittee and legal counsel. 
Negotiating parties: GL Bruno, Agent, Mendocino Coast Medical Plaza, LLC. 
 
Under negotiation: price and terms of payment. 
 
3c) Gov. Code §54956.9(d)(4): Conference with Legal Counsel: Initiation of Litigation 
One (1) potential case. 

Public Comment 

3d) Report out from Closed Session. 

OPEN SESSION - 6:00 pm. 

4. REPORTS 
4a) Receive and file February 2025 MCHCD Board Chair’s Report - Paul Garza Jr. 
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only. 
 
Attachments: February 2025 MCHCD Board Chair’s Report. 
 
4b) Receive and file Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital Report - Jeff Mock, Operations 
Executive, Adventist Health Network. 
Recommended Action: None.  This item is for information only. 

4c) Receive and file February 2025 Agency Administrator’s Report - Katharine Wylie. 
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only. 
 
Attachments: February 2025 Agency Administrator’s Report. 
 

Public Comment   

Board Regular Meeting Agenda - February 27, 2025            Page 2 of 4      kw/Regional Government Services  
http://MendocinoChCd.gov/ 

http://mendocinochcd.gov/


 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS 
5a) Receive and file Check Register Report -  1/31/25; Actual vs. Budget Report -  1/31/25; 
Treasury Bill Inventory Portfolio -  1/31/25; and  Summary of Cash Balances - 1/31/25 - 
CFO Wayne Allen. 
Recommended Action: Accept and file Check Register Report -  1/31/25; Actual vs. Budget 
Report -  1/31/25; Treasury Bill Inventory Portfolio -  1/31/25; and  Summary of Cash 
Balances - 1/31/25. 

Attachments: Check Register Report -  1/31/25; Actual vs. Budget Report -  1/31/25; 
Treasury Bill Inventory Portfolio -  1/31/25; and  Summary of Cash Balances - 1/31/25. 
 
Public Comment  
 
5b) Receive and consider approval of Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital Capital 
Expense Reconciliation Report dated 7/1/2020 through 1/31/2025, recognizing $4,283,815 
of additional CapEx purchases and a cash transfer of $667,141 from the Operations Fund 
into the Improvements Fund - Peter Johnston Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital 
Facilities Manager, CFO Allen, Agency Administrator Wylie 
Recommended Action: approve Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital Capital 
Expense Reconciliation Report, dated 7/1/2020 through 1/31/2025, recognizing 
$4,283,815 of additional CapEx purchases and a cash transfer of $667,141 from the 
Operations Fund into the Improvements Fund. 

Attachments: Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital Capital Reconciliation Expense 
Report, dated 7/1/2020 through 1/31/2025. 

Public Comment 
 
5c) Receive and consider adoption of the Board Mission Statement revision, dated 
2/17/2025 - Agency Administrator Wylie. 
Recommended Action: Adopt the Board Mission Statement revision, dated 2/17/2025. 
 
Attachments: Board Mission Statement revision, dated 2/17/2025. 
 
Public Comment 

5d) Receive and consider adoption of the Board Bylaws amendment, dated 2/27/2025 - 
Agency Administrator Wylie. 
Recommended Action: Adopt amended Board Bylaws dated 2/27/2025. 
 
Attachments: MCHCD Board Bylaws amendment, dated 2/27/2025. 
 
Public Comment 

Board Regular Meeting Agenda - February 27, 2025            Page 3 of 4      kw/Regional Government Services  
http://MendocinoChCd.gov/ 

http://mendocinochcd.gov/


 

 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The Consent Calendar will be acted upon by the Board at one time without discussion. Any 
Board member may request that any item be removed from the Consent Calendar for individual 
consideration.   
 
ITEMS RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 
6a) Draft Minutes of the 1/23/2025 Regular meeting. 

6b) Draft Minutes of the 2/17/2025 Special Board Workshop meeting. 

6c) Savings Bank Resolution 2025-4 to obtain district bank statements. 
 
Public Comment 

7. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board will be held on March 27, 2025, at 5:00 pm, at the 
Redwoods Room, 700 River Drive, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital, Fort Bragg, 
Ca. 
 
Dated: February 24, 2025 

 

 

Katharine D. Wylie 
MCHCD Agency Administrator 

Board Regular Meeting Agenda - February 27, 2025            Page 4 of 4      kw/Regional Government Services  
http://MendocinoChCd.gov/ 

http://mendocinochcd.gov/


 
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

775 RIVER DRIVE, FORT BRAGG 95437 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   MCHCD Board of Directors 
 
FROM:   Paul Garza, Jr. 
 
DATE:   February 27, 2025     
 
SUBJECT:  Monthly Report 
 
 
MEDICARE/MEDI-CAID FUNDING 
The future of our hospital may be at risk from potential cuts in federal spending. Our hospital 
receives, like nearly all rural hospitals throughout the US, a large amount of its reimbursement 
for services from Medicare/Medicaid. While pledges have been made that no reductions will 
occur to Medicare (the program for Seniors), no such pledges have been made regarding 
Medicaid (the program that serves low-income and disabled individuals). California’s Medi-Cal 
program is funded 60% by federal funds. This may seem high but most States actually receive 
80% of their reimbursement for services to low-income individuals from federal funds. 
 
It is estimated that the termination of Medicaid could cost California $100 Billion. California’s 
Medi-Cal program and State resources would not be able to cover such a reduction.  Our 
hospital receives roughly 78% of its reimbursement from Medicare, Medicaid and Medi-Cal. 
Therefore, any reduction in funding of Medicare/Medi-caid at the federal level is a serious 
threat to the future viability of the hospital. I urge all of our citizens of our community to learn 
more and voice your concerns to federal elected officials.  
 
For more information about the impact of these potential reductions, please visit our website 
where we have non-partisan analysis from the American Hospital Association, the California 
Health Care Foundation and other sources.  We will continue to track this very closely.  
 
ADVENTIST HEALTH LEADERSHIP 
Adventist Health has announced several leadership changes in our region. Most significantly, 
Mr. Jeff Mock, formerly the Chief Financial Officer for the region, has been appointed as the 
Chief Operations Officer for the region. While transitions can take time to work through, I would 
observe that communication between the District and Adventist Health has significantly 
improved since the change. We are hopeful this will continue and grow. 
 
 
 

1 
 

Kathy W
5

Kathy W
4a)



HOSPITAL FACILITY PLANNING 
The Board of Directors are seeking the broadest public participation in our process to determine 
the best alternative for facility seismic retrofit, modernization and upgrade. As an important 
part of that, it was our intention to appoint several citizens to our Planning Committee to 
closely assist with this process. We have learned that anyone appointed to a Standing 
Committee by our Board is subject to the Ralph M. Brown Opening Meetings Act. This means 
they would be very limited in any communication with each other outside of meetings.  On the 
agenda this evening is a proposed By-Laws change that will remove the appointment of public 
members to Board Committees; this is not intended to reduce public participation but rather to 
enable it. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  

2 
 

Kathy W
6



 

 

To: MCHCD Board of Directors 

From: Katharine Wylie, MS Ed. 

Date: 02/27/2025 

Subject: Agency Administrator’s Report 

 

MARCH 2025 MEETINGS 

March 10, 2025 - 1:00 pm Planning Committee Mtg (tentative) 

March 17, 2025 - 1:00 pm Measure C Oversight Committee mtg 

March 27, 2025 - 5:00 pm Regular MCHCD Board Meeting 

 

Local Ambulance Update: 

 

 
The district added a new 2024 Merz ambulance for $218,994, bringing the fleet to five. 

Two are on duty 24/7, with others activated as needed. Thank you to the tax-payers of 

this District! 

Administrator’s Report, February 27, 2025, Page 1 of 5      kw/Regional Government Services 
http://MendocinoChCd.gov 

http://mendocinochcd.gov


 

 

 

This month, the district also sold two surplus ambulances at public auction 

(http://govdeals.net/): 

● A 2007 Ford, sold for $1,803, now serving a volunteer fire department in 

Brawley. 

● A 2013 Sprinter, sold for $6,850, headed to the Manteca area. 

The total from these sales is $8,653 and checks will be deposited to the District 

Tri-Counties bank account mid-March. I would like to extend a special thanks to Davey 

Beak, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital, for coordinating the sales and 

pickups. 

 

 

Board Mission Statement Revision 
The Board held a special workshop on February 17, 2025, to reconsider its mission 

statement. Before affiliating with Adventist Health, the District operated Mendocino 

Coast District Hospital and home healthcare services. 

In 2020, a 30-year lease allowed Adventist Health Mendocino Coast (AHMC) to take 

over hospital operations. Now serving as a landlord rather than an operator, the Board 

has revised its mission statement and will review it for approval tonight. The draft 

MCHCD Board Mission statement is: 

MCHCD provides a hospital and fosters leadership, advocacy and 

collaboration for our community health and well-being. 

 

The Board discussed the District’s vision and will review a draft vision statement for 

adoption in a future meeting. The draft MCHCD Board Vision statement is: 
 
MCHCD facilitates exceptional, compassionate and accessible 

healthcare to our community through a hospital, and ensures 

access to both traditional and modern care, while fostering 

leadership, advocacy and collaboration to enhance Community 

Health and well-being. 

 

 

Administrator’s Report, February 27, 2025, Page 2 of 5      kw/Regional Government Services 
http://MendocinoChCd.gov 

http://mendocinochcd.gov


 

 

 

 
Community Outreach & Engagement 
With the help of Madelyn Grigsby (Props & Measures) I looked into community 

engagement efforts across 17 Health Care Districts in California. About half of those 

districts have active community engagement initiatives, and just under half (about 8) 

have active social media accounts. The community engagement efforts we found fall into 

three main categories: Events, Classes and Sponsorships. It is important to note that 

most of these districts operate their community hospitals, making some of these events 

and classes easier to plan given existing resources at the District's disposal.  
 
Director Finley will be asking the board to consider formation of an ad hoc committee 

with a goal of increasing community engagement by uniting community organizations, 

to understand their roles and needs, and identify service, funding, or staffing gaps in 

food, transportation, and health. 

 

PRA Cost Report 

Per Director request, research into a public records act request is ongoing, and I will 

issue a report soon. 

 

Facilities Planning Process 

Assuming approval of the Bylaws at tonight’s meeting, the Planning Committee will 

restart meetings in March and resume work on seismic retrofit plans. The next meeting 

is tentatively set for March 10, 2025 - 1:00pm, Redwoods Room, AHMC Hospital. 
 

Administrator’s Report, February 27, 2025, Page 3 of 5      kw/Regional Government Services 
http://MendocinoChCd.gov 

http://mendocinochcd.gov


 

 

 

Maternity Care in California 
Below are my notes from a February 26, a CalMatters zoom meeting with Asm. Mia 

Bonta: 

Maternity care in California faces a crisis, with a recent state report revealing that every 

five days, a person in the state dies from pregnancy-related complications. Since 2012, 

at least 56 labor and delivery wards have closed across both rural and urban areas, 

leaving 12 counties without any maternity services. These closures have 

disproportionately impacted low-income and Latino families, who are more likely to live 

in areas with limited access to maternity care. Additionally, Black women in California 

experience a maternal mortality rate three to four times higher than their counterparts, 

highlighting the racial disparities in healthcare. 

Several factors contribute to the growing number of maternity care closures. One of the 

most significant issues is California’s low Medi-Cal reimbursement rate for obstetric 

services, the lowest in the country. Medi-Cal pays for half of all births in the state, 

making funding a crucial factor in the survival of maternity wards. Declining birth rates 

also pose a challenge, as low volume can lead to safety concerns when providers do not 

perform enough deliveries to maintain expertise. Workforce shortages further 

exacerbate the problem, with eight counties already lacking a licensed OB-GYN and 

projections indicating a shortage of 1,100 obstetricians by 2030. Additionally, regulatory 

and financial challenges make it difficult for birth centers to operate, with only four 

licensed centers remaining in the state. The licensing process is notoriously 

complicated, often taking years to complete. 

Racial and economic disparities further complicate maternity care access. Black and 

Latino communities are 20% more likely to lose their local maternity ward, and systemic 

racial bias in healthcare has led to worse birth outcomes for women of color. Research 

has shown that when patients receive care from providers who share their background 

and language, trust and health outcomes improve. However, the healthcare workforce 

remains largely homogenous, further deepening inequities. The overworked and 

underpaid nature of the healthcare system, especially in the post-COVID era, has also 

driven many professionals out of the field, worsening access to quality maternity care. 

To address these issues, policymakers have introduced various legislative measures. In 

the past year, two bills aimed at slowing maternity ward closures were introduced, one 

of which was signed into law. These bills focused on requiring hospitals to provide 

advance notice before shutting down maternity services, allowing policymakers to 

intervene when possible. This year, additional efforts include clarifying emergency 

medical treatment laws for pregnant women, expanding access to over-the-counter birth 

control, and introducing AB 8055, which seeks to increase the number of birth centers 

by easing licensing barriers. Some policymakers also advocate for regional maternity 

care models, such as a “hub and spoke” system, to improve accessibility. 

Administrator’s Report, February 27, 2025, Page 4 of 5      kw/Regional Government Services 
http://MendocinoChCd.gov 

http://mendocinochcd.gov


 

 

Workforce challenges remain a key concern, with efforts underway to improve 

conditions for healthcare workers. Recent legislation raised the minimum wage for 

healthcare employees to $25 an hour, acknowledging the critical role they play in 

patient care. Investments in education and training programs are also being made to 

build a stronger pipeline for OB-GYNs, midwives, and doulas. However, the healthcare 

workforce still struggles with burnout, long hours, and the inability to afford living near 

their workplaces, further complicating retention and recruitment efforts. 

Looking ahead, California must take urgent action to address maternity care access. 

Expanding funding for hospitals and birth centers, improving workforce diversity, and 

ensuring fair wages for healthcare professionals are essential steps toward building a 

more equitable system. Without these changes, more maternity wards will continue to 

close, putting pregnant individuals and their babies at risk. The future of maternity care 

depends on proactive policy measures and a commitment to addressing the systemic 

barriers that have led to the current crisis. 
 
Threats to Medicare and Medicaid are on two tracks 
House Republicans narrowly passed a budget resolution with major tax cuts and 

spending reductions, including $2 trillion in federal cuts. It directs the House Energy 

and Commerce Committee to find $880 billion in savings, potentially affecting 

Medicare and Medicaid. The bill is not final—both chambers must negotiate a final 

version. The next major hurdle is the Energy and Commerce Committee, followed by a 

House vote, where a few Republican defections could block it. 

Medicare and Medicaid face two major threats: 

1. Government Funding Deadline (March 14) – Potential cuts to hospital funding, 

telehealth, rural health care, and more. 

2. 2026 Budget Plan – Possible reductions in Medicaid funding, wage adjustments 

for high-cost areas, changes to payment policies, and cuts to hospital support 

programs, which could severely impact California hospitals. 

ACalifornia Hospital Association Report: 

https://calhospital.org/congress-must-protect-patient-care/ 
American Hospital Association  Report: 

https://www.aha.org/system/files/media/file/2025/01/AHA-2025-Advocacy-Agenda-20

250114.pdf 
 

Administrator’s Report, February 27, 2025, Page 5 of 5      kw/Regional Government Services 
http://MendocinoChCd.gov 

https://calhospital.org/congress-must-protect-patient-care/
https://www.aha.org/system/files/media/file/2025/01/AHA-2025-Advocacy-Agenda-20250114.pdf
https://www.aha.org/system/files/media/file/2025/01/AHA-2025-Advocacy-Agenda-20250114.pdf
http://mendocinochcd.gov


This Page Intentionally Left Blank



Kathy W
7

Kathy W
5a)



Kathy W
8

Kathy W
5a)



Kathy W
9



Kathy W
10

Kathy W
5a)



Kathy W
11



Kathy W
12

Kathy W
5a)



Kathy W
13

Kathy W
5b)



Kathy W
14

Kathy W
5b)



Kathy W
15

Kathy W
5b)



Kathy W
16

Kathy W
5b)



Kathy W
17

Kathy W
5b)



Kathy W
18

Kathy W
5b)



 

 

Draft 

District Mission Statement 

(Rev 2.27.25) 

 

 

MCHCD provides a 

hospital and fosters 

leadership, advocacy and 

collaboration for our 

community health and 

well-being. 

Kathy W
19

Kathy W
5c)



 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS BOD Meeting:  2/27/2025 

FROM: Katharine Wylie, Agency Administrator Item: 5d) 

SUBJECT: BYLAWS AMENDMENT - STANDING COMMITTEES 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Amend the Board Bylaws to limit Standing Committee membership to two board members and 

update Planning Committee jurisdiction. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The Board Bylaws currently call for “up to six” members of the community to be committee members 

of the Board’s Standing Planning and Finance committees. For the past year, the District has 

struggled to properly convene calendared committee meetings due to non-aligned member schedules.  

Achieving a quorum is required for the committee to conduct its business.  Further, community 

members participating in such committees are bound to the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, 

(Brown Act).  Violations of the Brown Act could risk both penalties to the District and hamper the 

ability of key community stakeholders to exchange relevant  information. 
 

ANALYSIS 

While the intent of the original Bylaws provision was to ensure open and public participation in 

planning and finance matters, participation of community members and receipt of community input 

may be better achieved through well-planned Board meetings, community engagement workshops,  

and ad hoc advisory groups.  As a landlord rather than a health services operator, the current work of 

the District focuses on confidential real estate negotiations as well as appropriately navigating a 

partnership with a health operator with proprietary business transactions.  Much of the associated 

work in this area is properly designated by the Brown Act as subject to confidential closed sessions of 

the Board, rather than open sessions of a standing committee. In addition, the District has no staff 

and therefore no responsibility for human resources policies, compensation or benefits actions.  

Should a staffing project be authorized by the Board at some future time, the general project planning 

and oversight language that exists is adequate to engage this committee if needed. 

Given the District’s current mission, it is advisable to amend the bylaws to limit Standing Committee 

membership to two board members, and to remove defunct activity from the Planning Committee. 

These changes would support timely and productive public meetings, with appropriate community 

input on agendized items.  As the District embraces its new mission, this adjustment to align the 

Bylaws with current roles and goals will focus and facilitate the work of the standing committees. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None anticipated at this time. 

2/27/2025   Staff Report - Board Bylaws Amendment    Page 1of 1     kw_ss/Regional Government Services 
http://MendocinoChCd.gov/ 

http://mendocinochcd.gov/


 

majority vote to serve on the committee. Every Standing committee shall keep action 
minutes of each of its meetings, and every committee shall report to the Board periodically 
concerning its activities. 
 
The Board may, by majority vote, appoint a temporary Committee Member to serve during 
the absence of a regular committee member. 
 
Any member of a committee may be removed at any time by the Chair, subject to the consent 
of the Board. 
 
Section 2. Standing Committees. 
Planning 
A Standing Committee on Planning, composed of two Board members, and up to Six 
community members, will be chaired by the Vice Chair and shall meet at least quarterly and 
report to the Board thereafter. The purpose of the Planning Committee includes but is not 
limited to  

● Developing a plan and performing oversight for projects authorized by the Board; 
● Developing a plan and performing oversight for ongoing facilities maintenance and a 

five-year facilities improvement plan; 
● Recommending and overseeing Human Resource policies, compensation and 

benefits; and, 
● Recommending community members as appropriate for Board appointment to the 

Planning Committee. 

Finance 
A Standing Finance Committee composed of two board members and up to Six community 
members, will be chaired by the Treasurer, and shall meet at least quarterly and report to 
the Board thereafter. The purpose of the Finance Committee includes but is not limited to: 
 

● Ensuring an annual independent audit is performed; 
● Providing a budget recommendation to the Board in May of each year for adoption in 

June; 
● Recommending and overseeing fiscal policies and investments, and accounting and 

budgeting practices; 
● Reviewing Board financial statements and reports; and 
● Reviewing Measure C Committee recommendations; 

Section 3. Ad Hoc Committees. 
Ad hoc committees, including not more than two directors, may be established by the Chair 
for defined tasks of a limited duration. The Chair shall notify the Board that an ad hoc 
committee has been established, and the purpose thereof. An ad hoc committee shall only 
perform those duties assigned by the Chair, and upon their completion be discharged. The 
Chair shall determine the members of the committee. The Chair shall be notified in advance 

Draft MCHCD Board Bylaws Revision, 2/27/2025                Page 9 of 10                 kw_Regional Government Services 
http://MendocinoChCd.gov 

 

21

5d)



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



 

majority vote to serve on the committee. Every Standing committee shall keep action 
minutes of each of its meetings, and every committee shall report to the Board periodically 
concerning its activities. 
 
The Board may, by majority vote, appoint a temporary Committee Member to serve during 
the absence of a regular committee member. 
 
Any member of a committee may be removed at any time by the Chair, subject to the consent 
of the Board. 
 
Section 2. Standing Committees. 
Planning 
A Standing Committee on Planning, composed of two Board members, and up to Six 
community members, will be chaired by the Vice Chair and shall meet at least quarterly and 
report to the Board thereafter. The purpose of the Planning Committee includes but is not 
limited to  

● Developing a plan and performing oversight for projects authorized by the Board; 
● Developing a plan and performing oversight for ongoing facilities maintenance and a 

five-year facilities improvement plan; 
● Recommending and overseeing Human Resource policies, compensation and 

benefits; and, 
● Recommending community members as appropriate for Board appointment to the 

Planning Committee. 

Finance 
A Standing Finance Committee composed of two board members and up to Six community 
members, will be chaired by the Treasurer, and shall meet at least quarterly and report to 
the Board thereafter. The purpose of the Finance Committee includes but is not limited to: 
 

● Ensuring an annual independent audit is performed; 
● Providing a budget recommendation to the Board in May of each year for adoption in 

June; 
● Recommending and overseeing fiscal policies and investments, and accounting and 

budgeting practices; 
● Reviewing Board financial statements and reports; and 
● Reviewing Measure C Committee recommendations; 

Section 3. Ad Hoc Committees. 
Ad hoc committees, including not more than two directors, may be established by the Chair 
for defined tasks of a limited duration. The Chair shall notify the Board that an ad hoc 
committee has been established, and the purpose thereof. An ad hoc committee shall only 
perform those duties assigned by the Chair, and upon their completion be discharged. The 
Chair shall determine the members of the committee. The Chair shall be notified in advance 

Draft MCHCD Board Bylaws Revision, 2/27/2025                Page 9 of 10                 kw_Regional Government Services 
http://MendocinoChCd.gov 

 

Kathy W
21

Kathy W
5d)



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



 

 
Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board Meeting Minutes, January 23, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 1 of 7 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

MINUTES 
Thursday, January 23, 2024, at 5:00 PM 

 Redwoods Room, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital Campus 
700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA. 

 
CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 
 
1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Chair Garza called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
This meeting was held in-person and by teleconference in accordance with the Brown Act. 
 
Directors Present: Chair Paul Garza, Jr.  Vice Chair Paul Katzeff 
 Secretary Susan Savage Jan McGourty 
 Lynn Finley 
 
A quorum of the Board was present. 
 
Management Team: Agency Administrator Katharine Wylie 
 Chief Financial Officer Wayne Allen 
 Clerk of the Board Norma I. Alley, MMC 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Chair Garza called for public comment. 
 
Bruce Broderick spoke to senior housing issues. 
 
George Reinhardt spoke to housing issues and support for hospital services. 
 
Seeing no further comment, Chair Garza closed public comment. 
 
3. REPORTS 
 
3a) Receive and file MCHCD Chair’s Report  
 
Chair Garza reported on his written report and provided updates on general matters of interest to the District. 

Kathy W
23

Kathy W
6a)



 

 
Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board Meeting Minutes, January 23, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 2 of 7 

 
3b) Receive and file Adventist  Health Mendocino Coast  Hospital Report  
 
No report was provided. 
 
3c) Receive and file Redwood Coast  Seniors Report  
 
Redwood Coast Senior Center Executive Director Jill Rexrode presented on general Senior Center matters pertaining 
to the District and fielded inquiry from the Board.  
 
3d) Receive and file Mendocino Props and Measures Report  
 
Props and Measures Senior Consultant Robin Garrity provided a summary of her written report. 
 
3c) Receive and file Agency Administ rator’s Report  
 
Administrator Wylie provided updates on general matters of the District and fielded inquiry from the Board. 
 
Chair Garza called for public comment. Seeing no one come forward, he closed public comment. 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS 
 
4a) Discussion and possible action including Elect ion of Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary and Treasurer of the 
Mendocino Coast  Health Care Dist rict  Board for the 2025 Calendar Year. 
 
Chair Garza introduced the agenda item and described the procedure for the election. 
 
Elect ion of Chair 
 
Chair Garza ceded the election to Secretary Savage to conduct the election of Chair.  
 
Secretary Savage called for nominations.  
 
Director Katzeff nominated Director Garza.  
 
Seeing no further nominations, the vote was called. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Garza:  Garza 
Finley:  Garza 
Katzeff: Garza 
McGourty: Garza 
Savage:  Garza 
 
Director Garza was elected as Chair, receiving majority vote. 

Kathy W
24



 

 
Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board Meeting Minutes, January 23, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 3 of 7 

 
Elect ion of Vice Chair 
 
Chair Garza called for nominations for Vice Chair. 
 
Director Finley nominated Director McGourty. 
 
Director Katzeff nominated himself.  
 
Seeing no further nominations, the vote was called. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Garza:  Katzeff 
Finley:  McGourty 
Katzeff: Katzeff 
McGourty: McGourty 
Savage:  McGourty 
 
Director McGourty was elected as Vice Chair, receiving majority vote.  
 
Elect ion of Secretary 
 
Chair Garza called for nominations for Secretary. 
 
Director Finley nominated Director Savage. 
 
Seeing no further nominations, the vote was called. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Garza:  Savage 
Finley:  Savage 
Katzeff: Savage 
McGourty: Savage 
Savage:  Savage 
 
Director Savage was elected as Secretary, receiving majority vote. 
 
Elect ion of Treasurer 
 
Chair Garza called for nominations for Treasurer. 
 
Secretary Savage nominated Director Finley. 
 
Seeing no further nominations, the vote was called. 
 

Kathy W
25



 

 
Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board Meeting Minutes, January 23, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 4 of 7 

Roll Call Vote:  
Garza:  Finley 
Finley:  Finley 
Katzeff: Finley 
McGourty: Finley 
Savage:  Finley 
 
Director Finley was elected as Treasurer, receiving majority vote. 
 
Chair Garza called for public comment. 
 
Gabriel Maroney spoke to the need to call for public comment prior to the elections. 
 
Malcolm Macdonald spoke to the need to call for public comment prior to the elections. 
 
Seeing no further comment, Chair Garza closed public comment. 
 
4b) Discussion and possible action to adopt  the Draft  2025 Regular Board Meet ing and Draft  2025 Standing 
Finance, Planning and Measure C Oversight  Committee Meetings master calendar. 
 
Agency Administrator Wylie presented the staff report and fielded inquiry from the Board. 
 
Discussion amongst the Board ensued regarding moving the Board Meetings around the District or holding community 
meetings around the District. 
 
Chair Garza appointed an Ad Hoc Committee of Vice Chair McGourty and Secretary Savage to review the Board 
Meeting schedule and report back in February with a recommendation. 
 
Chair Garza called for public comment. 
 
A Citizen asked what the size of the service area was. Chair Garza answered that the service area spans from Westport in 
Elkhorn all the way to Comptche with a population of around 20,000 people. 
 
Seeing no further comment, Chair Garza closed public comment. 
 
Motion: Treasurer Finley made a motion to approve the Committee Meeting Calendar, with exception of holidays, and 
postpone the Board Meeting Calendar for review by the Ad Hoc Committee. Motion was seconded by Secretary Savage. 
The motion was approved by a 5 Yes/0 No vote. 
 
4c) Discussion and possible act ion including appointment  of Standing Committee members pursuant  to 
Bylaws; Adoption of Resolut ion Regarding Board Standing Commit tees for 2025. 
 
Chair Garza noted Treasurer Finley serves per the Bylaws and called for volunteers to serve on the Finance Committee. 
Secretary Savage volunteered to serve. 
 

Kathy W
26



 

 
Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board Meeting Minutes, January 23, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 5 of 7 

Chair Garza noted Vice Chair McGourty serves per the Bylaws and called for volunteers to serve on the Planning 
Committee. Chair Garza and Director Katzeff volunteered to serve.  
 
Chair Garza noted he also wanted to continue the Blue Zone Ad Hoc Committee, which was currently seated by 
Director Katzeff. 
 
Chair Garza called for public comment. 
 
Gabriel Maroney requested clarification regarding the appointment process for the Planning Committee citizen seats. 
Agency Administrator Wylie explained the process and noted the consideration of appointment would be at the 
Planning Committee Meeting. 
 
Seeing no further comments, Chair Garza closed public comment. 
 
Motion: Secretary Savage made a motion to appoint Treasurer Finley and Secretary Savage to the Finance Committee, 
Vice Chair McGourty and Chair Garza to the Planning Committee, and Directors Katzeff and Garza to the Blue Zone 
Ad Hoc Committee. Motion was seconded by Vice Chair McGourty. The motion was approved by a 4 Yes/1 No 
(Katzeff) vote. 
 
4d) Receive and file Check Register Report  - 12/ 31/ 24; Actual vs. Budget  Report  - 12/ 31/ 24; Treasury Bill 
Inventory Port folio - 12/ 31/ 24; and Summary of Cash Balances - 12/31/24 
 
Chief Financial Officer Allen summarized his written report. 
 
Chair Garza called for public comment. 
 
Malcolm Macdonald commented on his public records act requests he submitted. 
 
Seeing no further comments, Chair Garza closed public comments. 
 
Director Katzeff requested Mr. Macdonald’s records request be on the next meeting agenda for review by the Board. 
The Board agreed and Chair Garza requested it be placed on the February meeting’s Agenda. 
 
Motion: Secretary Savage made a motion to accept, receive, and file the financial reports. Motion was seconded by 
Treasurer Finley. The motion was approved by a 5 Yes/0 No vote. 
 
4e) Receive and consider approval of the Advent ist  Health Mendocino Coast  Hospital Capital Expenditures 
List , dated 1/ 17/ 2025, and refer to the Measure C Oversight  Commit tee 
 
Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital North Coast Area Chief Financial Officer Jeff Mock summarized the 
written report and requested approval of the Capital Expenditure List. Mr. Johnston fielded inquiry from the Board. 
 
Chair Garza called for public comment. Seeing no one come forward, he closed public comment. 
 

Kathy W
27



 

 
Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board Meeting Minutes, January 23, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 6 of 7 

Motion: Treasurer Finley made a motion to accept the Capital Expenditure List, as submitted, totaling $305,799.66. 
Motion was seconded by Secretary Savage. The motion was approved by a 4 Yes/0 No/1 Abstain (Katzeff) vote. 
 
4f) Receive and consider approval of the Health Management  Associates Contract  for assistance with the 
Voluntary Rate Range Program (VRRP) 
 
Health Management Associates Managing Principal Steve Soto summarized the written report and proposal and fielded 
inquiry from the Board. 
 
Chair Garza called for public comment. 
 
Malcolm Macdonald provided general comments to the agenda item. 
 
Seeing no further comments, Chair Garza closed public comment. 
 
Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital North Coast Area Chief Financial Officer Jeff Mock noted the Hospital 
is supportive of the proposal. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Allen noted he looked into the State Health Plan and received push back due to being told the 
District does not provide direct patient care, but felt there was a good case to continue to pursue as there is indirect 
patient care and recommended approval of the contract. 
 
Motion: Vice Chair McGourty made a motion to accept the proposal, with the contract amount not to exceed $30,000. 
Motion was seconded by Treasurer Finley. The motion was approved by a 5 Yes/0 No vote. 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
5a) Draft  Minutes of the 12/ 12/ 2024 Regular Meet ing; Draft  Minutes of the 1/ 2/ 25 Special Board Workshop 
Meeting 
5b) Board Resolut ion 2025-1, Tri-Count ies Bank Signature Authority, addit ion of 2025 Board President , 
Secretary and Treasurer 
5c) Board Resolution 2025-2, LAIF (Local Agency Investment Fund) Signature Authority, addit ion of 2025 
Board President, Secretary and Treasurer 
 
Chair Garza called for public comment. Seeing no one come forward, he closed public comment. 
 
Motion: Secretary Savage made a motion to approve Consent Calendar items. Motion was seconded by Treasurer 
Finley. The motion was approved by a 5 Yes/0 No vote. 
 
6. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD 
 
There were no comments from the Board. 
  

Kathy W
28



 

 
Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board Meeting Minutes, January 23, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 7 of 7 

 
7. CLOSED SESSION 
 
7a) Gov. Code §54956.8: Conference with Real Property Negotiators, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg. Ca. 
District Negotiators: Wayne Allen, Chief Restructuring Officer, MCHCD. 
Negotiating party: Eric Stevens, President, Northern California Network, Adventist Health.  
Under negotiation: Terms of the Lease Agreement, dated July 1, 2020. 
 
7b) Gov. Code §54956.8: Conference with Real Property Negotiators, 721 River Drive, Fort Bragg. Ca. 
District Negotiators: Appointed District ad hoc Subcommittee and legal counsel  
Negotiating parties: GL Bruno, Agent, Mendocino Coast Medical Plaza, LLC.  
Under negotiation: price and terms of payment of possible purchase. 
 
Chair Garza announced the Closed Session items topics. 
 
Chair Garza called for public comment. Seeing no one come forward, he closed public comment. 
 
Chair Garza called a recess at 7:10 p.m. The Regular Meeting reconvened at 7:14 p.m. 
 
Chair Garza led the Board into Closed Session at 7:14 p.m. The Closed Session adjourned and the Regular Meeting 
reconvened at 7:35 p.m. 
 
7c) Report  out  from Closed Session 
 
Chair Garza reported there was no discussion on Item 7a and the Board was going to notify Adventist Health that the 
Board needed six months to consider if the Board can identify a non-profit entity who would be willing to partner or 
takeover Hospice Thrift Store operations. 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Seeing no further business, Chair Garza adjourned the meeting at 7:38 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, Clerk of the Board 

Kathy W
29



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

MINUTES 
Monday, February 17, 2025, at 1:00 PM 

Mendocino Coast Healthcare Foundation office 
130 North Main Street, Fort Bragg, CA. 

 
CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 
 
1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Chair Garza called the meeting to order at 1:04 p.m.  
 
This meeting was held in-person in accordance with the Brown Act. 
 
Director’s Present: Chair Paul Garza, Jr.  Vice Chair Jan McGourty 
 Secretary Susan Savage Paul Katzeff 
 Treasurer Lynn Finley  
 
A quorum of the Board was present. 
 
Management Team: Agency Administrator Katharine Wylie 
 Chief Financial Officer Wayne Allen (via telephone) 
 RGS Strategic Services Consultant Chris Sliz 
 RGS Consultant Tom Schwedhelm 
 
Chair Garza introduced RGS Consultants Chris Sliz and Tom Schwedhelm, and invited them to 
conduct a Board Mission and Vision Workshop. 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
2a) George Rinehardt, Gabriel Maroney commented on the Board Mission and Vision.  
 
3. BOARD WORKSHOP 
3a) Session 1 
RGS Consultants Sliz and Schwedhelm facilitated a discussion on  a common understanding of the 
district’s parameters for the board's mission statement. 
3b) Public Comment 
Sarah Ginskey, Gabriel Maroney, George Rinehardt and Terry Ramos provided general comments 
regarding the Board’s mission and vision statements. 

 
Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board Meeting Minutes, February 17, 2025  – Workshop  Meeting Page 1 of 2 

Kathy W
6b)

Kathy W
31



 

 
3c) Session 2 
The session focused on revising the  district’s mission statement, post-affiliation with Adventist 
Health Mendocino Coast Hospital.  By a vote of 5:0 the board adopted a revised mission statement:  
 

“MCHCD provides a hospital and fosters leadership, advocacy and 
collaboration for our community health and well-being”. 

 
3d) Public Comment 
Terry Ramos, Gabriel Maroney and Sarah Ginsky commented on the proposed board mission 
statement. 
 
4. ADJOURNMENT 
4a) The workshop concluded and the meeting was adjourned  at 3:52 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Katharine D. Wylie, Agency Administrator  

 
Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board Meeting Minutes, February 17, 2025  – Workshop  Meeting Page 2 of 2 

Kathy W
32



 

 
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION 2025-4 
February 27, 2025 

The Mendocino Coast Health Care District (hereinafter "District") maintained various 

bank accounts with Savings Bank of Mendocino County until the first quarter of 2024 , and, 
  

Due to the District’s contracting with Wayne Allen, Silverton Management LLC, to serve as 

the district’s Chief Financial Officer, and Katharine Wylie, Regional Government Services, to 

serve as the district’s Agency Administrator; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the District’s Chief Financial Officer and Agency 

Administrator have authority to access any and all former district bank account statements 

and information with Savings Bank of Mendocino County:  
 

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District at a regularly scheduled 

meeting of the Board, passed this Resolution on February 27, 2025, by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

 

 

 

Signed,  

 

 

________________________________, Chair of the Board of Directors 

Paul Garza Jr. 

 

 

 

Attest, 

 

 

________________________________, Secretary of the Board of Directors 

Susan Savage  

Board Resolution 2025-4,  February 27, 2025, Page 1 of 1      kw/Regional Government Services 
 

Kathy W
6c)


